[bookmark: _GoBack]

Confirmed Minutes of the Shaping Our Future Hospitals Committee
Held on 13th October 2021 at 9am
Via MS Teams

	Chair:
	
	

	Dr Rhian Thomas
	RT
	Independent Member – Capital & Estates

	Present:
	
	

	Gary Baxter
	GB
	Independent Member for University

	John Union
	JU
	Independent Member for Finance

	David Edwards
	DE
	Independent Member for ICT

	In Attendance:
	
	

	Abigail Harris
	AH
	Executive Director of Strategic Planning

	Catherine Phillips
	CP
	Executive Director of Finance

	Edward Hunt
	
	Programme Director – Strategic Planning

	Nikki Foreman
	NF 
	Director of Corporate Governance

	Secretariat:
	
	

	Nikki Regan
	NR
	Corporate Governance Officer



	Item No
	Agenda Item
	Action

	SOFHC 13/10/001
	Welcome and Introductions

	

	SOFHC 13/10/002
	Apologies for Absence

The Shaping Our Future Hospitals Committee resolved that:

a) No apologies for absence were noted. 

	

	SOFHC 13/10/003
	Declarations of Interest

The Independent Member – University declared an interest of being employed by Cardiff University who are a partner and stakeholder in SOFH


The Shaping Our Future Hospitals Committee resolved that :

a) Subject to the above declaration of interest, no further declarations of interest were noted.   

	

	SOFHC 13/10/004
	Minutes of the previous Committee meeting – 21st July 2021

The Shaping Our Future Hospitals Committee resolved that :

a) The minutes of the meeting held on 21st July 2021 were agreed as a true and accurate record. 

	

	SOFHC 13/10/005
	Action log following the previous meeting – No Action Log

	

	SOFHC 13/10/006
	Programme Overview – verbal update

The Executive Director of Strategic Planning (EDSP) gave a verbal update on the following matters :– 
· Observations have been made from Welsh Government (WG) regarding further work required in relation to the programme business case. 
· WG’s view was that the business case contained too much detail. 
· Edward Hunt (EH) had worked hard to update the business case and the same had been resubmitted to WG. 
· A date for the pre-infrastructure investment meeting was confirmed for 3rd December. 
·  
· Due to significant pressures, doing nothing was not an option. 
· Testing through cardiology & diabetes services had taken place. 
· Geraldine Johnson was to be seconded into a role of senior operational lead in light of her clinical and operational background. The purpose of the role was to think about the principles from an “experience” point of view. 
· The way wards were currently set out did not help to aid recovery, and provision of staff should be considered. 

The Executive Director of Finance (EDF) supported the points highlighted by the EDSP. Key posts had been recruited to in advance of WG’s confirmation of the funding. 
The Independent Member for Digital (IMD) questioned if there was a good understanding of the scale, ambition and costs associated with the building of the proposed new hospital? The EDSP answered with the following points –
· UHW was a tertiary centre for a large number of services in South Wales and included the Children’s Hospital for Wales. 
· Hywel Dda UHB had bid for a new acute hospital. They proposed to develop on a new site with a hub for A&E in Aberystwyth.  Their price tag for 400 beds is £1 billion. 
· A £2billion budget was required for UHW 2, which the First Minister was aware of. 
· When the Grange Hospital for Aneurin Bevan Health Board was developed, they had encountered some issues. The SOFH team would have regard to any lessons learnt from other recent new build hospitals. 


The EDSP mentioned that one option was to build hospital blocks in phases if the preferred option was to remain on the current site. That option could be more expensive, although if the funding was provided over a 10 year period, it could be more affordable. A further challenge was to contribute to the zero emissions. 

The Shaping Our Future Hospitals Committee resolved that:

a) The verbal update provided by the Executive Director of Strategic Planning was noted.
	

	SOFHC 13/10/007
	Outcomes of Welsh Government Meeting – 27/08/2021 and update on Gateway review recommendations

EH gave a brief update following the meeting with Welsh Government (WG). 
· Some useful recommendations were received from WG but some had already been negated by the recent re- submission of the business case. 
· The team would ask for some further feedback from WG to ensure the Health Board was moving in the right direction. 
· The response received so far on the draft had been positive. 
The EDSP noted that Andrew Goodall had been appointed as the Permanent Secretary. Judith Paget had been appointed as his replacement for 18 months. 

EH commented that the Gateway Review was still on going and he was keen to move forward with a better delivery assessment. 

The Independent Member for University (IMU) asked for clarification of the dates that were referred to in the covering report.  EH clarified that on 27th August a meeting with WG took place in order to get a definitive way forward in relation to the programme business case. They suggested reference to some of the economical appraisal and the capital figure £2billion were removed from the outline business case. A resubmission date for 1st October was agreed. The updated business case provided on 4th October was well received by Simon Dean. 

IMU noted that the revised case was submitted on 1st October and a meeting was held 3 days later.  He queried if that was enough time to process all the information? EH explained the following – 
· Conversations had taken place with key stakeholders before 1st October where a draft was provided and feedback was received.  . 
· WG proposed 3rd December for an investment board. 
· The updated business case was a in a completed draft form for submission. 
· It was in a draft form subject to ~WG’s endorsement. 
· WG had suggested a meeting to go through the updated business case and deal with any questions that had arisen in respect of the same. 

The IMU appreciated there would be conversations going on behind the scenes and he wanted to be clear what was happening regarding the iteration of documents. 

The Independent Member for Finance (IMF) queried if the Committee would receive a summary of changes? EH confirmed he would provide a summary. 

The EDSP stated that it was important for the Committee to be clear with regards to the sequence of meetings and that the Committee should see the revised business case. 

The EDSP commented that the Executive summary had not changed greatly, although it did not include the price. It was felt appropriate to submit the business case to keep the momentum going. 

The Chair noted the proposed meeting would take place on 3rd December. EDSP commented that the programme business case would be on the agenda.  She suggested a 45 minutes presentation would be given at the meeting and she suggested that Stuart Walker, Meriel Jenney, Catherine Phillips attended with Abigail Harris. A copy of the presentation would be shared with the Committee Members. 

The Shaping Our Future Hospitals Committee resolved:

a) The Committee noted the re-submission of the business case.

	




















































	SOFHC 13/10/008
	Business Case Review

EH gave an update on the business case review, which included the following points: – 
· With the re submission of the business case, the intention was only to make the requested changes to the PBC. 
· The economic analysis was carried out for the options which were evaluated and a preferred way forward was recommended. 
· The capital figures and implementation were removed and the list would be reviewed at the next stage. 
· WG thought the original options were not definitive. 
· 5 options were considered. Since the submission of the business case, the SOFH engagement had taken place which had identified a strong mandate from the public. 
·  
· A mutual investment model could be considered to resource the project, and that could consider phasing in order to make the scheme more affordable. 
· Director of Capital and Estates had given feedback on the daily maintenance at UHW. A clinician gave a clinical risk update from a clinical stand point. 
· There was a project for redevelopment of hospital restructure. 
· Documents could be shared with the Committee so the changes could be seen. 

The Chair agreed that a one page summary would be helpful. 

The Independent Member for Finance (IMF) commented that he assumed that the figure of £4.7 million for resources was to undertake the work required to get the business case completed. Was there a list to show where that was being accounted for in the Health Board’s budget? 

EH responded that the figure given referred to the estimated costs for internal and external resource that would be required, and had assumed WG would fund the same.  

EH commented that the feedback received from Simon Dean was that WG do not normally fund clinical activity. 

The EDF supported that comment. Funding was expected from WG to enable the Health Board to get to the SOC phase. 

The Chair questioned if the £4.7 million would be for the SOC phase and not for the PBC? She also queried when would that funding get approved? 

The EDSP responded that : – 
· Following the Infrastructure Board meeting, a recommendation would be put to the Minister to endorse. 
· The concern was that WG would view the £5million as too much. 
· There was a view that the Health Board may have to pull back on some of the work. 
· To signal that the SOC was a separate piece of work was not helpful as the SOC was a fundamental piece of work. 
· She would talk to Simon Dean informally and explain more benchmarking had been done. 
· Simon Dean was leaving WG in December. 
The Chair queried what the current status with external partners was and whether they had been engaged upon a retainer basis? 

EH confirmed that the Health Board had engaged a company on a sub retainer basis. They had been engaged in a couple of areas and had provided a response and review of the business case. The Health Board wanted to do a brochure with Cardiff University & Cardiff Council to promote the opportunity. 

The Shaping Our Future Hospitals Committee resolved:

a) The position of the programme and the intent to seek WG endorsement of the PBC as soon as practical to allow progress to be made on the three identified next step projects, was noted.


	

	SOFHC 13/10/009
	Stakeholder Engagement updates

EH gave an update which included the following points :– 
· All main stakeholders were sent a letter signed by Stuart Walker & Len Richards to explain the programme business case. 
· Conversations had taken place with WG and the Director of Climate Change. 
· A meeting was due to take place that day with Transport colleagues. 

The EDSP stressed the need to keep wider stakeholders updated.  She queried if that should include WHSSC, Valandra & Welsh Ambulance NHS Trust? The Programme Board should give some thought to that.  She also raised the need to do an equality and health impact assessment and continue to keep the same under review.  The EDSP further commented that 85% of patients who attend UHW were Cardiff residents using the services and 15% of patients access the specialists & tertiary services.

The IMU commented that it was too early to have wide spread public engagement, but queried if the CHC had given any indication on how it would like to see public engagement undertaken in relation to this project? 

The EDSP responded as follows: – 
· The Health Board had presented a high level overview to the CHC. 
· The engagement regarding the clinical services plan was important and had a strong mandate – that was, healthcare should be delivered in hospital where it cannot be delivered in the community. 
· A public consultation would need to be completed. 
· At SOC stage it was recognised that the Health Board may not have answers to all questions. 
· If there was a strong clinical view, that should be set out. 
· This was an important work stream for communication and engagement. 
· There was an active Heath Residents Association and the Health Board should start to communicate with local residents. 

The Shaping Our Future Hospitals Committee resolved:

a) The level of engagement with key stakeholders carried out to date, was noted. 

	

	SOFHC 13/10/010
	Infrastructure Report 

EH provided a brief overview with regards to the infrastructure covering report –
· There were two reports, one was written by Geoff and set out the day to day maintenance of UHW and the other considered clinical risk. 
· A business case (Academic Avenue) was rejected because of UHW 2. 
· It had been suggested that critical care should undertake an IT transformation. 
· Academic Avenue was going to cost over £100million, and the capital required for digital transformation was up to £200million. 
· Financial resource was required. 
· In summary, the report detailed the clinical risk and why something needed to change. A strategic outline case was required to address such matters. 

The Chair noted it was an important piece of work, particularly. In terms of scene setting for public engagement. 

The IMD asked over what period was £200 million needed for digital transformation. EH confirmed a timescale had not been confirmed.  He added that costing for the buildings and additional cost for IT had been worked up. 

The EDSP added that it was important to note that it had been acknowledged that the solution was not to wait 10 years to get new infrastructure.   The Health Board should ensure that each phase of the business case was being future proofed. Digital technology in healthcare was moving forward – for example, automation, and robotics.
DE commented that £200million was not enough and whilst he understood the point relating to digital transformation, he queried where would the funding come from? 

The IMF commented that digital technology would take the hospital forward.  One aspect of the report had shown that the digital infrastructure of UHW was poor. 

The EDSP commented that most of the UHW buildings had a schedule of works.  The inspections of the same had resulted in expenditure that had not been predicted. There was a business case for a hybrid theatre and the electrical inspection was not positive. 


The Shaping Our Future Hospitals Committee resolved:

a) The Infrastructure Report was noted.  

	

	SOFHC 13/10/011
	Risk Register / Risk Overview

EH explained that the risks had not changed significantly.  There had been delays in terms of the business case. The covering report had set out the top risks to the scheme. 

The EDSP commented that her team had learnt from PBC phase and that some phases were undertaken in a short time frame. More time would be given if options were set out for appraisal. One option would be to talk with WG about what was not being progressed. There was a risk that they were looking to the Health Board for the regional service plan. There was a need to tease out what the specialist and tertiary services would look like. 

EH commented that the principle deadlines had been challenging to produce a realistic piece of work. He had visited a previous new build site that had taken 9 years to complete. 


The Shaping Our Future Hospitals Committee resolved:

a) The Risk Register and the actions being undertaken to manage those risks was noted.
	

	
	Items for Approval / Ratification
	

	SOFHC 13/10/012
	The Shaping Our Future Hospitals Committee resolved:

a) No items were noted for approval. 
 

	

	
	Items for Information and Noting
	

	SOFHC 13/10/013
	Programme Board Minutes – 23.07.21

The Shaping Our Future Hospitals Committee resolved:

a) The Programme Board minutes in relation to the meeting held on 23 July 2021 were agreed and noted. 

	

	SOFHC 13/10/014
	Lifesciences Commercial Opportunities – Verbal Update

EH raised that he would like to progress an opportunity with academic health sciences. Approval had been received for Genomic Services to be relocated into a specialist business park and discussions were taking place with regards to what other services could move there. He commented that the Health Board should work with Cardiff University. It was anticipated that a workshop would be facilitated by Grant Thornton to explore the matter further.  A date for November had been arranged, although this would be postponed.

EH agreed to provide an update at the next Committee. 

The Shaping Our Future Hospitals Committee resolved:

a) The verbal update relating to Lifesciences Commercial Opportunities was noted.

	









EH

	SOFHC 13/10/015
	AOB

The EDF said it would be useful to understand what were the milestones and associated timelines to be met next year and how resources could best be deployed to meet the same?  The Chair suggested that at the Committee’s next Agenda Setting meeting, Members could consider the key milestones for 2022.   The Committee agreed.   

The Chair noted that the Committee might want David Thomas to attend a future Committee meeting to discuss digital capital. 

The IMU want to endorse something that was raised regarding engagement & communications. Engagement was important and hence it was vital to ensure that (I) the engagement strategy was appropriate and (ii) the right people were engaged in order to produce the right result. 

The Shaping Our Future Hospitals Committee resolved:

a) AOB was noted by the Committee. 

	

	SOFHC 13/10/016
	Items to be deferred to Board / Committee


The Shaping Our Future Hospitals Committee resolved:

a) The proposal to bring the PBC to the next Committee meeting, was noted.
	

	SOFHC 13/10/017
	Date and Time of Next Meeting:

11th January 2022 at 9am Via MS Teams


	



3

